
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., April11, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, April 04, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, April 09, 2023 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – March 14, 2023   

 

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S) 

                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Intent to Award ………………………………………………………………………..                1 - 5 

IFB#GHURA-23-09-MOD9-AMP4; Renovation of Nine (9) Public 

Housing Units 

2. Change Order #1 ………………………………………………………………………….              

IFB#GHURA-09-26-2017-CDBG; Up-grade of Baseball Fields in  

Sinajana and Umatac 

 

V.   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

2. Division Updates    

                                                                                                                               

 VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:   

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023  

(Initial Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023  

   (Initial Evaluation) 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, May 09, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

 

VII.  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 







 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 1 of 7 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., March 14, 2023 
GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  
AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 
After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                                       

Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board 

meeting was  called to order at 12:03 P.M., Tuesday, March 14, 2023, at the GHURA 

Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 

6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum, and 

that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Frank Ishizaki, (attended via Zoom) 
Commissioner  
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner  
 
ABSENT: 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman 
(term expired) 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Elicio Florig 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director  
Fernando Esteves, Deputy Director 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 
Frances Danieli, Fiscal Controller 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR 
Administrator 
Katherine Taitano, CDBG Manager 
Norma San Nicolas, Section 8 
Administrator 
Antonio Camacho, Supply Management 
Administrator 
Stephan Baza, Section 8 Inspector 
Supervisor 
 
PUBLIC:  
Senator Roy Quinata 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 1st Printing – Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, March 12, 2023 
 ACKNOWLEDGED by Chairman Rivera 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – February 21, 2023   

[028/23] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the board meeting minutes of 

February 21, 2023, subject to corrections. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the 

motion. The motion was passed unanimously.  



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                    
IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-009  

Resolution commending Mrs. Monica O. Guzman for her dedication and 

contributions as the Vice Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of Commissioners.  

 

[029/23] Director Napoli read Resolution No. FY2023-009 to the BOC.  

Chairman Rivera stated that anyone who gives themselves in service for several 

years is worthy of mention. He referenced a part in the Resolution that stated that 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman contributed positively to the lives and successes of 

thousands upon thousands of our island residents and added that there was no 

better measure of success. 

 

[030/23] Commissioner Delia moved to approve Resolution No. FY2023-009 

commending Mrs. Monica O. Guzman for her dedication and contribution as 

the Vice Chairwoman of the GHURA Board of Commissioners. Commissioner 

Sanchez seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously.  

 

2. Resolution No. FY2023-010 

Resolution Requesting Additional Positions in the Public Housing-AMP1 and 

AMP3 Divisions 

 

[031/23] Director Napoli read Resolution No. FY2023-010 to the BOC. 

• Director Napoli indicated that a correction had to be made to the resolution 

under the AMP3 Maintenance worker position per annum pay. The 

correction should read $33, 315.00.  

Deputy Director Esteves stated that as a procedural matter, the board should vote 

on the resolution as amended. He indicated that GHURA conducted an operational 

analysis of the AMPs to determine where the backlog comes from. This typically is a 

45-day turn-around and it was determined that the biggest backlog was with the 

Interviewer Clerk. He added that every AMP will be getting an additional 

Interviewer Clerk to assist with efficiency and to have succession planning in place. 

Internally, GHURA has taken funded vacancies and reprogramed them. Per the 

requirements of the board, any new positions above the staffing patterns require 

board approval. Deputy Director Esteves humbly requested the board’s 

consideration for approval of the resolution.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about how Interviewer Clerks are assigned to the AMPs. 

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that each AMP has their own budget, but due to 



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 3 of 7 

 

staffing shortages, GHURA can detail ICs to other AMPs creating a larger pool of 

trained individuals.  

There were no further discussions.  

                 [032/23] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve Resolution FY2023-010     

resolution requesting additional positions in the public housing AMP1 and 

AMP3 divisions with an amendment of a period instead of a comma with the 

salary of $33,315. Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

3. Intent to Award IFB#GHURA-23-03-CDBG-5TREN; Talofofo Renaissance 

Concrete Repair. 

 

[033/23] Director Napoli requested that the board table item #3, Intent of 

award IFB#GHURA-23-03-CDBG-5TREN, Talofofo Renaissance Concrete 

Repair, for the next scheduled board meeting. 

 

[034/23] Chairman Rivera announced officially that new business Item #3 of 

the March 14, 2023 board meeting agenda will be tabled.  

 

 

4. Resolution No. FY2023-011, Resolution approving the Write-Off Tenant 

Accounts Receivable.  

 

[035/23] Director Napoli read Resolution No. FY2023-011to the BOC 

• Director Napoli added that what happens after a write-off, the names are 

forwarded to the Department of Revenue and Taxation. Refunds may not 

be released to those with outstanding balances owed to GHURA. 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the reasons why AMP4’s write-off was much 

higher than the other AMPs. Director Napoli indicated that AMP4 is the largest AMP 

site with the most residents, which may be the reason for the higher number of 

write-offs. Deputy Director Esteves added that there have also been staffing 

challenges which also add to the difficulty in collections. He stated that HR had 

recently hired additional Housing Specialists to go after collections aggressively. 

However, the issue of residents not responding or not having the ability to pay 

continues. He added that documentation and proof of collection attempts is required 

by HUD because it does affect GHURA’s overall score.  

Director Napoli stated that site managers have informed residents with past due 

rents that they can seek assistance through the Emergency Rental Assistance 



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 4 of 7 

 

program administered by the Department of Administration. Unfortunately, due to 

various reasons, some residents are either ineligible or choose not to apply. When 

GHURA has exhausted all its efforts to collect those monies, they must be taken out 

of the books and referred to the Department of Revenue and Taxation.  

Deputy Director Esteves added that there are situations where additional fees get 

added on to the monies due to GHURA, such as the abandonment of the unit or if 

there are significant damages to the unit that require cleaning or repairs, those 

situations will drive up the cost owed by the tenant.  

Commissioner Delia inquired about the reasons for termination and Termination 

Grievance Hearing Process. Deputy Director Esteves stated that per HUD 

regulation, tenants are allowed an opportunity to appeal the decision. Usually, 

gross violations that warrant a termination often result in the Termination 

Grievance Hearing process. GHURA does allow the tenants due process. 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the success rate of recovering the monies 

owed to GHURA via the Department of Revenue and Taxation. Director Napoli 

indicated that the Department of Revenue and Taxation has garnished refunds 

from individuals who have outstanding balances with GHURA. Due to this process, 

Director Napoli stated that collections have been successful.  

Commissioner Rice inquired about the timeline that outstanding balances remain 

with the Department of Revenue and Taxation. Deputy Director Esteves stated that 

he will get the information and forward it to the board.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about whether penalties and interest were added 

to the debt once at collections. Deputy Director Esteves confirmed that they are 

added to the outstanding balance.  

                   There were no further discussions.  

[036/23] Commissioner Delia moved to approve Resolution No. FY2023-011,   

the Resolution approving the Write-Off Tenant Accounts Receivable for 

Property sites AMP1 in the amount of $9,594.63, AMP2 in the amount of 

$951.41, AMP3 in the amount of $9,006.85, AMP4 in the amount of $38,051.85, 

and Guma Trankilidat in the amount of $476.35 in the total amount of 

$58,081.09. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. The motion was passed 

unanimously. 

 

 

 



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 5 of 7 

 

V.  CORRESPONDENCES AND REPORTS 

1. Travel Reports- Travel for NSPIRE Training, Ref: Minute No. 006/23 

[037/23] Deputy Director Esteves presented on behalf of himself, Stephan Baza,  

and Michael Orot and stated the following: 

• All three attended the conference, Get Ready NSPIRE on behalf of GHURA 

on January 31, 2023 

• Representation from the policy side, Section 8, and Public Housing 

• Met with HUD Deputy Secretary, Ashley Sherriff, (Head of REAC), Region IX 

Administrator, Jason Pu, and the Executive Director for Public Health of 

Northern California. 

• In-Person conference provided valuable information unavailable via the 

NSPIRE website 

• New Standards were discussed. 

• Exemptions and exceptions processes were discussed. 

• GHURA was able to advocate for applicability standards. 

• Pending HUD decisions in progress 

• GHURA anticipated Public Housing REAC Inspection (UPCS Standard) 

cancelled. 

• NSPIRE Standard postponed to July 2023 

• NSPIRE applies to Public Housing, Housing Choice Voucher (Section 8), 

Community Planning and Development (CPD), and Multi-Family (MF) 

• Standards will be published in 23 CFR Part 5 Subpart G 

• NSPIRE merges UPCS (PH& MF) and HQS (Section 8) into a single uniform 

standard 

• NSPIRE focuses on Health and Safety weighted heavily on unit interiors. 

1. Common areas and exterior are secondary (NSPIRE) 

2. Less emphasis on cosmetics and curb appeal (UPCS) 

• NSPIRE scoring will consider tenant feedback, projected implementation. 

on FY2023 4th quarter 

• NSPIRE built on Sales Force digital platform. 

• April 1, 2023, is the effective date for NSPIRE 

• July 1, 2023, Inspection of Record (IR) begins for Public Housing 

• HUD REAC contact will provide addition information on how to prepare. 

• During IR, nothing will be held against GHURA for 12 months. 

• August 1, 2023 submit the budget relative to what GHURA needs added 

into the FY2024 budget  

• October 1, 2023 Inspection of Record (IR) for Section 8, Multi-Family, and   

 CPD 

 



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 6 of 7 

 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about whether discussions were made regarding 

environmental hazards unique to Guam, such as radon, hazardous chemicals, or WWII 

ordinance. Deputy Director Esteves indicated that any hazardous environmental 

constituent does affect what GHURA does and will look into how it will apply to the 

NSPIRE standard. He added that GHURA is preparing a grant submission to address radon 

concerns within its public housing. Once more information is made available, it will be 

reported to the board.  

 

Director Napoli added that she is communications with GHURA’s HR division to reach out 

to Nan McKay to possibly send a representative to Guam to train all of GHURA’s inspectors 

and maintenance staff to better understand the new standards that will be used moving 

forward.  

 

      [038/23] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the Travel Expense reports  

      for Michael M. Orot, Stephen T. Baza, and Fernando B. Esteves attending the   

      NSPIRE Conference. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. The expense  

      reports were accepted unanimously by the board.  

 

 

VI.   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

[039/23] Executive Director Napoli deferred the discussion to Mr. Sonny 

Perez, AE Manager for project updates 

 

Mr. Sonny Perez stated the following: 

• Umatac Baseball Field- as of 3/14/2023, Occupancy permit executed and 

signed. Once the permit is delivered to GHURA, a public announcement will be 

made for public usage. Project is completed. 

• Inarajan Basketball Court- JJ Global completed the DPW inspection of the 

Occupancy permit. Once the permit is delivered, a public announcement will 

be made for public usage.  

• Women’s Treatment Center- GHURA had requested that the contractor 

meet the standards for OSHA on safety. Construction is 43% complete.  

• HOMES Construction (Panao and Agat)- ongoing, expected completion by 

end of May 2023 

• Genesis Tech- AMP1 Site Improvements Tree Change Order- At a 

previous board meeting, Commissioner Corpus inquired about a tree that 

could potentially present challenges in the future at AMP1 site. UPDATE: 

Tree had been removed.  

 



 
GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2023                                                                            Page 7 of 7 

 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the completion date of the Light House 

Recovery Building. Mr. Perez indicated that unofficially the projected date will be 

some time in September 2023.  

 

Director Napoli added that the weekly meetings with AE, CPD, CDBG, and CFP 

regarding project compliance and the monitoring of expenditures continue and that 

an update to the board is forthcoming.  

 

2. Division Updates 

  [040/23] Introduction of the newly hired Mr. Antonio Camacho, Supply 

Management Administrator and Mr. Elicio Florig, GHURA’s in-house Legal Counsel.  

                                                                  

   VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. [041/23] Dr. Bersamin announced a courtesy reminder to submit the 

following Executive Management Evaluations for: 

 

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023  

(Initial Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023  

   (Initial Evaluation) 

 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, April 11, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

 

[042/23] Chairman Rivera indicated that Ms. Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant, 

will send out notices to commissioners via email regarding a consensus on the 

next scheduled board meeting date. 

 

 
VII.  ADJOURNMENT  

[043/23] Commissioner Delia motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Rice seconded 
with no objections by other board members. Motion passed to adjourn the 
meeting at 1:31 PM.  

 
 

          

 SEAL                                                                              

                                                                    

___________________________________________ 

                                                       Elizabeth F. Napoli 

                                             Board Secretary / Executive Director 



Board Meeting of April 11, 2023 PAGE 1 of 5



Board Meeting of April 11, 2023 PAGE 2 of 5



Board Meeting of April 11, 2023 PAGE 3 of 5



Board Meeting of April 11, 2023 PAGE 4 of 5



Board Meeting of April 11, 2023 PAGE 5 of 5




